
HEBER PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
 

REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

MEETING DATE: September 19, 2024 
 
FROM:  Madeline Dessert, General Manager 
    
SUBJECT: Award the Estancia Park Irrigation Efficiency Project to the Lowest, 

Responsive and Responsible Bidder, Sun Landscape Inc., Contingent on 
Final Review and Approval – General Manager 

ISSUE: 
 
Shall the Board of Directors award the Estancia Park Irrigation Efficiency Project to the lowest, 
responsive and responsible bidder, Sun Landscape Inc., contingent on final review and approval? 

GENERAL MANAGERS RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors award the Estancia Park Irrigation Efficiency Project to 
the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder, Sun Landscape Inc., contingent on final review and 
approval.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The RFP was posted on August 14, 2024. Heber Public Utility District received no bids before 
the closing date of September 4, 2024. Heber Public Utility District reposted RFP with 
Addendum #1 on September 9, 2024 with a closing date of September 13, 2024. Heber Public 
Utility received one bid September 13, 2024. The lowest responsive and responsible bid received 
was the only bid submitted. Sun Landscape Inc. submitted a bid for the amount of $142,400.  

This project is included in our Capital Improvement Project. HPUD received a grant from the 
County of Imperial in the amount of $130,374 to cover this project. This leaves the District with 
$12,026 to cover.  

CONCLUSION: 

Staff has attached bid tabulation form and recommends awarding the contract to the lowest bidder, 
contingent on final review to Sun Landscape Inc. 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Do no award contract. 
2. Provide alternative direction to staff 

https://heber.ca.gov/sites/default/files/site_documents/9.C.%20Athorize%20the%20GM%20to%20award%20contract%20for%20manhole%20repair%20061622.pdf
https://heber.ca.gov/sites/default/files/site_documents/9.C.%20Athorize%20the%20GM%20to%20award%20contract%20for%20manhole%20repair%20061622.pdf


The Holt Group, Inc. 

Engineering Department 
 

◼     Municipal Design     ◼     Infrastructure  Engineering     ◼     Construction  Management     ◼ 

 

1601 North Imperial Avenue   ◼   El Centro, CA 92243   ◼   760/337-3883   ◼   Fax 760/337-5997 

 

September 13, 2024 
Ms. Madeline Dessert 
General Manager 
Heber Public Utility District 
1078 Dogwood Road, Suite 103 
Heber CA, 92249 
 
RE: Heber Public Utility District – Estancia Park Irrigation Efficiency Project 

THG No. 744.100 
Proposal Document Review 

 
 
Dear Ms. Dessert, 
 
The Holt Group, Inc. has reviewed the proposal for the Heber Public Utility District – Eastancia Park 
Irrigation Efficiency (Project).  There was a single (1) proposal submitted (attached) from the three 
(3) known prospective bidders.  I have reached out to several contractors in regard to no response 
in proposals and have noted that they are busy with other projects and unable to commit to 
providing a proposal or work for the subject project. 
 
The sole bidder was Sun Landscape,Inc. (Sun Landscape).  Sun Landscape’s proposal amount was 
written as $142,400.00.  The Holt Group’s review found Sun Landscape’s proposal to include all 
required Request For Proposal information and is deemed to be the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder.  
 
It is The Holt Group’s understanding that HPUD’s construction budget was $120,00.00 as of 
December 2022.  
 
The Holt Group, Inc. recommends Heber Public Utility District to consider award of the Project to 
Sun Landscape. The award amount recommends the inclusion of $5,000 as a contingency allowance 
of any minor unforeseen or additional costs.  
 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns.  

 

Respectfully, 

 

_________________________ 
Juny Marmolejo, Project Engineer 

 

Cc: Jacob Bermudez, HPUD – Grants Manager 

 Luis Carrazco, HPUD – Finance Manager 

James G. “Jack” Holt, PE, The Holt Group, Inc. – Principal Engineer  

Sameer Patel, The Holt Group, Inc. - Project Engineer 
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